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31 December 2019
Strategic Report

Review of business

Overview

Revenue for the year amounted to £348 million (2018: £359 million) and the loss for the year after taxation and exceptional items
amounted to £76 million (2018: £46 million).

The year ended 31 December 2019 has seen a decrease in revenue in comparison to previous years and an increase in loss
after tax; this is mainly following the restructuring charge that occurred within the year.

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).

The Company has a a strong order book and a positive pipeline that will be supported by the release of new products into the
market, combined with its continued investment in its Cyber products and ongoing growth in other areas. However with the
outbreak of COVID-19 the directors are monitoring the situation of the Company.

Within the year IFRS 16 Leases became effective. It results in almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet. Under
the new standard, a right-of-use asset and a financial liability for future lease payments have been recognised resulting in
additional disclosures within the balance sheet. At 31 December 2019 an asset was recognised of £12m and a liability of £15m.
The Company undertook a capital contribution in the year along with its parent company, resulting in retained earnings increasing
by £381m.

Within the year the Company undertook a reorganisation of one of its divisions resulting in a provision being recorded to be taken
thereby increasing costs and the loss in the year. The provision taken at 31 December 2019 had a net impact on the income
statement of £16m. There was also a significant individual loss arising on disposal of intangible assets in the current year.

The future potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company is not yet known but may be significant. While the
Company cannot currently quantify what the effects might be, it continues to monitor the pandemic and its impact, to ensure
appropriate actions can be taken to mitigate risks to the Company.

Strategy Overview

BAE Systems Applied Intelligence business group (‘Applied Intelligence’), of which this Company is part, exists to protect and
enhance the connected world. It provides technology-based solutions which enable government and commercial customers to
find and stop threats, manage risks and regulations and operate securely. Applied Intelligence’s goal is to be a market leader in
the financial crime, cyber security and national security domains. The strategy comprises five elements:

* Extend the strong position in national security in the UK and allied countries;

*  Build on the strong position in financial services based on financial crime solutions;

¢ Pursue the significant, attractive market for cyber security operations and advisory services in commercial and
government customers;

e  Value people, enabling them to develop their capabilities and excel at their jobs; and

e  Create a financially heaithy and sustainable business.

Key performance indicators

The directors consider revenue and operating profit/loss as the principal key performance indicators to assess progress towards
achieving the Company's strategy. This information for the current and prior periods is set out in the Company’s Income Statement
on page 13.

Across the BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Group, total performance is reviewed on a regular basis in terms of order book.
However, this is not monitored and reported on a legal entity basis so no further information has been provided here.

Operating losses have increased in the year following the £16m reorganisation provision.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The significant high level risks identified by the Board have not changed substantially over the last 12 months, except for the
introduction of a new risk relating to contagious disease, and are as follows:
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Global economic climate

As with all technology businesses, the Company is exposed to any downturn in technology spending that may result from
instability in the global economy caused, for example, by rising commodity prices, acts of terrorism or significant pressure on
selected government spending programmes.

The directors believe that the diversified markets covered by the business and, in particular, the Company'’s focus on the counter
threat agenda and intellectual property led solutions to provide clients with greater value for money, provide some mitigation
against this risk. In addition, we maintain staff base flexibility in order that we can move resources to those sectors where demand
is greatest.

Recruitment market

The current market sees a strong demand for the best people. This has been particularly the case for people with advanced
technical skills and those with UK government clearances. The Company addresses the risk of a competitive recruitment market
through a portfolio of measures, including a strengthened HR recruitment team, attractive staff reward schemes such as flexible
benefits, and through new career development programmes.

Pricing pressure from off-shore providers

Low-cost providers in off-shore locations continue to exert pressure on pricing in some sectors of the organisations markets.
Applied Intelligence operate a UK delivery centre in Leeds, and through local subsidiaries, a similar centre in Poland and a larger
global delivery centre in Malaysia to provide more efficient and cost-effective offerings to our clients. Some of the Company’s
work is unsuitable for off-shore resourcing for security reasons, which is a constraint the organisation has sought to address by
investing in secure facilities in our UK locations.

Delivery risk

The Company has, over many years, built a track record of very strong project management and technical delivery of the most
complex and business-critical programmes. Any failure to meet client expectations and/or its contractual obligations could damage
the organisation’s reputation in the marketplace. The Company manages this risk through rigorous bid approval controls, peer
review of technical solutions and project plans and regular monitoring of high risk projects by project boards.

Security

Much of Applied Intelligence’s work relies on its reputation for strong security, in particular that for the national security community,
where the Company is subject to particular rules applied by national governments. Security breaches could materially damage
the Company’s business. Security matters are therefore carefully managed and are overseen by a director-level security
committee, which ensures that the business systematically embeds rigorous security practice in its everyday operations. The
Company is investing to ensure its own security keeps pace with the evolving threat environment.

Brexit

The terms of the UK's relationship with the EU after the end of the Transition Period on 31 December 2020 are currently uncertain,
rendering it difficult for the Company to prepare in detail for the changes in the regulatory environment that are likely to apply
beyond the Transition Period.

The outbreak of contagious diseases may have an adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Contagious diseases can have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. There
is currently a COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic across the world. Governments are taking a number of steps to mitigate the impact
of this pandemic, including implementing quarantines. Many people have contracted the disease across the world and many
deaths have occurred. It is not clear for how long this pandemic will last or how much more extensive it will become, or the further
measures that will be taken by governments and others to seek to control this pandemic and its impact.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, the Company has taken a number of responsive measures including
reducing site operational levels and introducing new cleaning regimes, safe working distance measures and protective equipment
for its employees. A significant proportion of the Company’s employees are working from home. While the Company is liaising
closely with its customers and suppliers to understand any changes in requirements and priorities during this time, the
uncertainties surrounding the development of this pandemic make it difficult to predict the extent to which the Company may be
affected.
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The COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic could also result in changes to the outlook in the Company’s markets. Areas of the
Company's business that could be impacted include a decrease in spending by the Company’s major customers, the failure to
obtain awards for contracts, the failure of suppliers to deliver services to the Company, the inability of the Company to meet
contractual delivery requirements on time, the inability to adequately staff and manage the business, and an increase in the cost
or lack of availability of funding. If the Company were unable to obtain appropriate funding, it could be forced to make reductions
in spending, seek to extend payment terms with suppliers. Any of the above could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. Each of the identified risks is regularly reviewed and actively
managed by the Board.

Section 172(1) statement

This Statement contains an overview of how the directors have performed their duty to promote the success of the Company as
set out in section 172(1) of the UK's Companies Act 2006. That section requires a director of a company to act in the way he
considers, in good faith, would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders. In doing this,
the director must have regard, amongst other matters, to:

. the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,

. the interests of the Company’s employees,

. the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

e the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment,

. the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
. the need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Decision making

The Operational Framework sets out the principles of good governance to which Group subsidiaries are required to adhere,
together with BAE Systems group’s values, policies and processes. Decisions affecting a subsidiary are required to be taken in
line with the Operational Framework, including in accordance with applicable delegations of authority.

Pursuant to the Operational Framework, BAE Systems' businesses each produce a strategic plan, a financial forecast for the
current year and financial projections for the next five years. The directors of the Company contribute towards this process for the
respective businesses of the Company for which they are responsible and are also responsible for identifying and managing
principal and emerging risks in such businesses. In so doing the directors have regard to a variety of matters including the interests
of various stakeholders, the consequences of their decisions in the long term and the long-term reputation of the Company and
its businesses.

Employees

Employee engagement is a primary focus for the directors of the Company — connecting employees to the Company’s and the
BAE Systems group's strategy and purpose, empowering them to contribute to improving business performance and creating an
environment in which everyone can fulfil their potential. We keep the Company’s employees informed about what is happening
across the BAE Systems group through the group’s intranet and email, podcasts, newsletters, and leadership calls, notices,
business updates and briefings.

These engagement activities form part of the Company’s implementation of the BAE Systems group-wide employee engagement
processes and policies which are described on pages 35-36, 83, 95-98 and 116 of BAE Systems plc's Annual Report 2019.

Also, pursuant to the Policy, employees are provided with the means to give their views and feedback. Through the
implementation by the Company of these processes and policies, the Directors have regard to the interests of the Company's
employees.

During 2019, the Directors considered that a restructuring of the business and a resultant redundancy programme was necessary
to secure the long-term interests of the Company having regard to the interests of various stakeholders, including the wider
employee and customer base. The directors implemented the programme to ensure it was carried out in a fair, reasonable and
equitable manner, supported by an appropriate employee communication and consultation process.
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Fostering business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The directors recognise that fostering business relationships with key stakeholders, such as customers and suppliers, is essential
to the Company’s success. The Company has close relationships with its customers, suppliers and industry partners which help
us to create best-in-class, cost-effective products, services and solutions.

Our largest customers are UK and Intemational government bodies and commercial businesses. Strong and collaborative
relationships with our principal customers help us to identify their requirements and to position the Company as a trusted provider.
The directors and their delegates are in regular contact with the principal customers of the Company.

The Company, together with its procurement and supply chain function, works with its suppliers to provide goods and services
that meet its customers’ requirements. The Company’s supplier relationships are often long-term and the directors and their teams
meet with key suppliers and work with the BAE Systems group’s procurement function to ensure broader engagement with in the
supply chain and develop strategic relationships with key suppliers.

The Community and the environment

In particular, during 2019, the Company re-organised and streamlined its procurement and supply-chain management teams to
better align with both business needs and strategic supplier requirements, resulting in closer customer and supplier relationships
and the effective leveraging of the BAE Systems Group for the benefit of the Company.

The directors recognise the importance of leading a company that not only generates value for shareholders but also contributes
to wider society. Through the Operational Framework the Company implements the requirements of the BAE Systems group’s
Community Investment Policy, which looks to ensure that we build and nurture mutually beneficial relationships between our
business, our people and local stakeholders. Giving back to the communities in which we operate, and to charities that have
meaning to our business, is vitally important to our Company and our employees, allowing us to make a positive difference and
have an impact where it counts.

We recognise that our operations have an impact on the environment — from the energy and resources we use, to the products
and services we supply and the waste that we generate. As an organisation, the BAE Systems group is committed to reducing
the environmental impact of our operations and products, minimising our environmental footprint and, in turn, decreasing our
operational costs. Through the Operational Framework the Company implements the requirements of the BAE Systems group's
Environmental Policy, which details our commitment to high standards of environmental management.

These activities form part of the Company’s implementation of the BAE Systems group-wide community and environment
processes and policies and the BAE Systems group’s impacts thereon which are described in the Environment and climate
change and Fostering strong community partnerships sections (pages 40-42) of BAE Systems plc's Annual Report 2019, available
at; www.baesystems.com/investors.

Maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The BAE Systems group aims to be a recognised leader in business conduct which helps us to earn and maintain stakeholder
trust and sustain business success. The directors consider it fundamental to maintain a culture focused on embedding responsible
business behaviours. All employees of the Company are expected to act in accordance with the requirements of BAE Systems
group policies, including the Code of Conduct, at all times. As well as being the right thing to do, this reduces the risk of compliance
failure and supports us in attracting and retaining high-calibre employees.

Detailed information on the BAE Systems group-wide business conduct processes and policies are described in BAE Systems
plc’'s Annual Report 2019 and in particular the Ethics and business conduct section on pages 38-39, available at;
www.baesystems.com/investors.
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Corporate Governance Statement

BAE Systems plc, the ultimate parent company of the Company, adheres to the UK Corporate Governance Code. The UK
Corporate Governance Code’s principles are embedded in the BAE Systems Group Operational Framework, which sets out the
principles of good govemance and encapsulates the BAE Systems Group’s values, policies and processes. Each company in the
BAE Systems Group is required to adhere to the Operational Framework, which enables the Group to deliver operational
excellence in a clear, accountable and consistent way.

The policies and processes in the Operational Framework are enacted at a local level by each of the businesses in the BAE
Systems Group. The Operational Framework is underpinned by an Operational Assurance Statement which is a six-monthly
process used to monitor compliance with the Operational Framework and policies.

Accordingly, the Company has not applied any separate corporate governance code for the financial year as it believes the
corporate arrangements described in this statement are appropriate for the Company.

Set out below is a summary of how principles of good corporate governance, as set out in the Operational Framework, apply to
the Company:

Purpose, Strategy, Values and Culture

The BAE Systems Group has a strategic framework that sets out the Group's vision, mission and strategy and sets out three
strategic priorities which are embedded throughout each business in the Group. This provides the link between the Group’s long-
term strategy and the near-term business objectives for all employees in the Company. The Company’s business produces a
strategic plan, a financial forecast for the current year and financial projections for the next five years, aligning resources with the
delivery of forecast financial perfformance and the BAE Systems Group's strategic objectives. in so doing the Directors have
regard to a variety of matters including the interests of various stakeholders, the consequences of their decisions in the long term
and the long-term reputation of the Company and its business.

The BAE Systems Group's strategy is supported by the Group's values of trusted, innovative and bold. The Group has a Cede of
Conduct which lays out the standards that are expected of each employee in the Company, to support the employees in doing
the right thing. All employees in the Company receive annual training designed to stimulate conversations about ethical decision
making.

Board and Directors’ accountability

The Directors of the Company includes the managing director and finance director of the Company. The managing director is
responsibie for ensuring local policies, processes and charters are in place in the businesses of the Company to implement the
requirements of the Operational Framework and for ensuring those requirements are met.

Those requirements ensure that intemal controls are place and documented that are designed to provide effective and
measurable management of operational risk and performance, in line with BAE Systems Group requirements. These controls
provide assurance regarding:

o the reliability and integrity of information

o compliance with policies, processes, laws, regulations and contracts

« the safeguarding of assets and protection against fraud, and

o the economical and efficient use of resources.

The requirements also regulate how the BAE Systems Group expects the employees of the businesses of the Company to be
managed and the obligations placed on all employees conceming avoiding conflicts of interest, anti-bribery, and managing the
security of employees, information and other assets.

As part of a robust system of internal controls, the authority of the managing director of the businesses of the Company is subject
to financial limits and other restrictions, above which matters must be referred upwards and ultimately to the Board of BAE
Systems plc.
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Risk

Responsibility for identifying, analysing, evaluating and managing principal and emerging risks in the businesses lies with the
managing directors of the businesses for which they are responsible. As mentioned the managing director of the main business
of the Company is a director of the Company. The Managing Director is also responsible for the reporting and monitoring of key
risks in accordance with established processes under the BAE Systems Group's Operational Framework.

The BAE Systems Group’s risk management process is set out in the Risk Management Policy, a mandated policy under the
Operational Framework, and, in respect of projects, in the Lifecycle Management Framework, a core business process under the
Operational Framework. The Lifecycle Management Policy sets out how the Company must plan and manage the execution of
projects above a certain minimum level, providing decision gate reviews at key stages from initial opportunity to final closure.
Further guidance is provided by a Risk Management Maturity self-assessment tool. identified risks are documented in risk
registers showing: the risks that have been identified; characteristics of the risk; the basis for determining mitigation strategy; and
what reviews and monitoring are necessary. Each risk is allocated an owner who has authority and responsibility for assessing
and managing it.

The Board of BAE Systems pic has overall responsibility for determining the nature and extent of the risk the BAE Systems Group
is willing to take and ensuring that risks are managed effectively across the Group.

Remuneration

The BAE Systems group’s Performance Leadership framework is a core business process designed to support the development
of a diverse and inclusive culture that delivers the group’s strategy. The framework provides a principled approach to performance,
assessment, development and reward for employees and is required to be implemented within the businesses of the Company.

Stakeholders

As regards employees, the Operational Framework includes a People Policy, pursuant to which the Directors and employees are
required to contribute to creating an engaged and inclusive work environment, where individuals are respected and where the
value of a diverse workforce is recognised. Pursuant to the policy; employees are to be provided with the means to give their
views and feedback, and for the feedback to be responded to appropriately.

As regards customers, the Operational Framework makes it a priority of each business to understand their customers' evolving
needs and expectations, and deliver on their commitments throughout the life of the business’s products and services, The
Operational Framework requires businesses to measure the delivery of such customer focus through reviews with customers and
measurement of schedule adherence.

As regards suppliers, the BAE Systems Group’s policy is to identify and select suppliers which meet the Group's standards and
to support them by managing risks throughout the lifecycle of any commercial arrangement. The businesses manage risk with
their suppliers in accordance with the BAE Systems Group's Procurement Policy, Lifecycle Management Framework and Supplier
Principles. The Directors of the businesses of the Company are required to oversee compliance with these policies and principles
for the businesses for which they are responsible.

The BAE Systems Group's Environmental Policy outlines the group’s commitment to improving standards of environmental
management, and compliance with the Policy is directed by environmental teams across the Group.

Pursuant to the BAE Systems Group’s Community investment Policy, the Global Community Investment Strategy aims to build
and nurture mutually beneficial relationships between the Group’s businesses and local stakeholders, including employee
involvement in charitable activities and donations to local, national and international charities. ’

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
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D J Lawton
Director

17 June 2020
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Company registration
BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited (‘the Company’) is a private company, limited by shares and registered in England and
Wales with the registered number 01337451.
Going concern

The future developments of the Company are reviewed in the Strategic Report along with the current decision on this years
dividend payment, page 2.

The ultimate parent company, BAE Systems plc, has indicated in writing that, for at least 12 months from the date of approval of
these financial statements, it will continue to make available funds as are needed by the Company to meet its liabilities as they
fall due and in particular will not seek repayment of amounts currently made available. While there remains significant uncertainty
as to the future impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company and its ultimate parent entity BAE Systems plc continue to
conduct ongoing risk assessments of the potential impact of the pandemic on its business operations and liquidity. The impact
on the Company to date is set out in Note 22. Having undertaken these assessments, the directors consider that the Company
will be able to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Research and development

The C_:ompany performs both customer funded research and development as well as investing in internal research and
development activities. The total intemal research and development cost can be seen in note 3 of the accounts.

Financial instruments

The international nature of the Company’s business means it is exposed to volatility in currency exchange rates. In order to protect
itself against currency fluctuations, the Company’s policy is to hedge all material firm transactional exposures.

Employees

The Company is committed to giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled people who meet
the requirements for roles, and making available training opportunities and appropriate accommodation to disabled people
employed by the Company. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their
employment with the Company continues and that appropriate training is arranged.

Employee engagement enables our employees to contribute to improving business performance and helps us to gauge our
performance in creating an environment in which everyone can fulfil their potential. Engagement with UK employees has been
considered on page 4 in the Strategic Report.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others
Engagement with suppliers, customers and others has been considered on page 5 in the Strategic Report.
Qualifying indemnity Provisions

The directors of BAE Systems Pension Funds Trustees Limited, BAE Systems 2000 Pension Plan Trustees Limited and BAE
Systems Executive Pension Scheme Trustees Limited benefit from indemnities in the goveming documentation of the BAE
Systems Pension Scheme, the BAE Systems 2000 Pension Plan and the BAE Systems Executive Pension Scheme. respectively.
given by the Company, which are qualifying indemnity provisions for the purpose of the Companies Act 2008. All such indemnity
provisions are in force at the date of this Directors’ Report.

Directors and their interests

The directors who served throughout the year and up to the date of this Report, were as follows:
J F C Cracknell

M S Watson — resigned 2 March 2020

A G Jordan

D J Lawton - appointed 27 April 2020

The Board is not aware of any contract of significance in relation to the Company in which any director has, or has had, a material
interest.
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Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Company'’s auditor is unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he ought
to have taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of
that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
Auditor

The auditor, Deloitte LLP, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and, in accordance with Section (872(2) of the
Companies Act 2006, has been re-appointed.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

— T -
_'_/: - P4 [
i
/

D J Lawton
Director
17 June 2020

Registered office:

BAE Systems Applied intelligence Limited
Surrey Research Park

Guildford

Surrey

GU2 7YP

United Kingdom
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn;

. state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business;

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited (the ‘company’):

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its loss for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
e the income statement;
* the statement of comprehensive income;
e the balance sheet;
. the statement of changes in equity; and
+ the related notes 1 to 24.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

" We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

1



Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
(continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’'s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

/%rvmj //ufig//

Thomas Murray, ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

17 June 2020
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BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019
Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes 2019 2018
£000 £000
Revenue 2 347,840 359,201
Other operating costs 3 (407,732) (393,146)
Exceptional operating costs 4 (15,513) (9,843)
Operating costs (423,245) (402,989)
Operating loss (75,405) (43,788)
Financial income 7 98 -
Financial expense ) 7 (672) (305)
Loss before tax (75,979) (44,093)
Tax 8 292 (1,458)
Loss for the year (75,687) (45,551)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Loss for the year (75,687) (45,551)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to the Income Statement:
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension schemes (14,900) 2,200
Tax on items that will not be reclassified to the Income Statement 2,533 (374)
Items that may be reclassified to the Income Statement:
Amounts credited to hedging reserve (1,885) (521)
Tax on items that may be reclassified to the Income Statement 320 89
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (13,932) 1,394
Total comprehensive expense for the year (89,619) (44,157)

The notes on pages 16 to 42 form part of the financial statements.

The results for 2019 and 2018 arise from continuing activities.
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BAE Systems Applied intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019
Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2019

Notes 2019 2018
£000 £000
Non-current assets
Right of use assets 9 12,220 -
Intangible assets 10 403 2,770
Property, plant and equipment 1 12,922 16,402
Investments 12 333 333
Retirement benefit surpluses 18 800 700
Other financial assets 13 1,361 2,918
Deferred tax assets 14 15,531 12,012
43,570 35,135
Current assets
Inventories 15 5,315 3,651
Trade, other and contract receivables 16 229,766 109,530
Other financial assets 13 1,604 815
Cash and cash equivalents 40 2
236,725 113,998
Total assets 280,295 149,133
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 9 (4,552) -
Trade and other payables 17 (143,594) (342,254)
Other financial liabilities 13 - (2)
Provisions 18 (7,593) (292)

(155,739) (342,548)

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities ] (10,618) -
Retirement benefit obligations 18 (27,100) (12,500)
(37,718) (12,500)
Total liabilities (193,457) (355,048)
Net assets/(liabilities) 86,838 (205,915)
Equity
Issued share capital 20 125 125
Share premium - 587
Other reserves 20 21,903 21,096
Retained earnings 64,810 (227,723)
Total shareholders equity/(deficit) 86,838 (205,915)

Approved by the Board on 17 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

P e
] "<.—-2// 7 (,‘—;L‘—‘-_“'
T
7
~
D J Lawton Registered number: 01337451
Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2019

BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019

Issued

share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium’ reserves earnings equity
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2019 125 587 21,096 (227,723) (205,915)
Loss for the year - - - (75,687) (75,687)
Share premium increase * - 380,000 - - 380,000
Capital reduction * - (380,587) - 380,587 -
'yrg;arlzother comprehensive income for the ; R (1,565) (12,367) (13,932)
Share-based payments (inclusive of tax) 21 - - 2,372 - 2,372
At 31 December 2019 125 - 21,903 64,810 86,838
At 1 January 2018 125 587 19,120 (183,998) (164,166)
Loss for the year - - - (45,551) (45,551)

Total other comprehensive (expense)/ R )
income for the year (432) 1.826 1.394
Share-based payments (inclusive of tax) 21 - - 2,408 - 2,408
At 31 December 2018 125 587 21,096 (227,723) (205,915)

'On 6™ December 2019, the Company issued £1 share to Detica Limited, a related company, for £380m. On 10* December the
Directors filed a solvency agreement canceiling the Company’s share premium.

2 The transactions in the year in the other comprehensive income statement impacting other reserves relate to changes in the

group hedging reserve.
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BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited (the Company) is a private company, limited by shares, and registered in England and
Wales and incorporated in the United Kingdom. Its ultimate controlling party is BAE Systems plc. The address of the Company's
registered office is shown on page 42.

These financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, are presented in pounds
sterling and, unless otherwise stated, rounded to the nearest thousand.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. The Company applies
the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), but makes

amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS
101 disclosure exemptions has been taken:

» the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment;
* the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
. the requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

o the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) to (c), 120 to
127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

o  the requirement in paragraph 38 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, to
present comparative information in respect of: paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1; paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment; paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets; and paragraphs 76 and 79(d) of IAS 40 Investment
Property;

. the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111 and 134 to 136 of IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements;

» the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

* the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;

. the requirements of paragraphs 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

o the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or
more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a
member; and

e the requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(ii), 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

The Company intends to continue to prepare its financial statements in accordance with FRS 101.

The Company is exempt under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial
statements as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its
ultimate parent, BAE Systems plc, a company registered in England and Wales. Accordingly, these financial statements present

information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not as a group.

The following paragraphs summarise the main accounting policies of the Company and have, unless otherwise stated, been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of relevant financial

assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments). These financial statements have been prepared using the going
concern basis of accounting.
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BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting policies

Certain of the Company’s significant accounting policies are considered by the directors to be critical because of the level of
complexity, judgement or estimation involved in their application and their impact on the financial statements. The critical accounting
policies are listed below:

Critical accounting policy Description

Revenue and profit recognition The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. For most of the Company’s contracts, revenue and
associated margin are recognised progressively over time as costs are incurred,
and as risks have been mitigated or retired.

The ultimate profitability of contracts is based on estimates of revenue and costs,
including allowances for technical and other risks, which are reliant on the
knowledge and experience of the Company’s project managers, engineers, and
finance and commercial professionals. Material changes in these estimates could
affect the profitability of individual contracts. Revenue and cost estimates are
reviewed and updated at least quarterly, and more frequently as determined by
events or circumstances.

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations Defined benefit pension scheme accounting valuations are prepared by
independent actuaries. The liabilities of the pension schemes are valued based
on a number of actuarial assumptions.

For each of the actuarial assumptions used there is a range of possible values
and management estimates the point within that range that most appropriately
reflects the Company’s circumstances. Small changes in these assumptions can
have a significant impact on the size of the deficit.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies
The classification of exceptional items requires significant management judgement to determine the nature and intentions of a
transaction. Note 4 provides further details on exceptional items.

In the course of preparing the financial statements, no other judgements have been made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, other than those involving estimates, that have had a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The application of the Company's accounting policies requires the use of estimates. in the event that these estimates prove to be
incorrect, there may be an adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The key
significant risk of a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities during 2019 relates to the determination of
the life expectancy, discount rate and inflation assumptions underpinning the valuation of the liabilities of the Company's defined
benefit pension schemes. A description of the discount rate and inflation assumptions, together with sensitivity analysis, is set out
in note 17.

Changes in accounting policies

IFRS 16 Leases became effective from 1 January 2019. The standard replaces |IAS 17 Leases. Whilst lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is similar to IAS 17, lessee accounting is significantly different. Under IFRS 16, the Company will recognise within the
Balance Sheet a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for future lease payments in respect of all leases, unless the underlying
assets are of low value or the lease term is 12 months or less. Within the Income Statement, rental expense on the impacted leases
will be replaced with depreciation on the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, see note 23.

Several other standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards became effective on 1 January 2019, none of which
had a material impact on the company.
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31 December 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been applied consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The directors believe that the financial statements
reflect appropriate judgements and estimates, and provide a true and fair view of the Company’s financial performance and position.

Revenue and profit recognition
Revenue represents income derived from contracts for the provision of goods and services, over time or at a point in time, by the
Company to customers in exchange for consideration in the ordinary course of the Company's activities.

Performance obligations

Upon approval by the parties to a contract, the contract is assessed to identify each promise to transfer either a distinct good or
service or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.
Goods and services are distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations in the contract if the customer can benefit
from them either on their own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer and they are separately
identifiable in the contract. The Company provides warranties to its customers to give them assurance that its products and services
will function in line with agreed-upon specifications. Warranties are not provided separately and, therefore, do not represent separate
performance obligations.

Transaction price

At the start of the contract, the total transaction price is estimated as the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods and services to the customer, excluding sales taxes. Variable
consideration, such as price escalation, is included based on the expected value or most likely amount only to the extent that it is
highly probable that there will not be a reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised. The transaction price does not
include estimates of consideration resulting from contract modifications, such as change orders, until they have been approved by
the parties to the contract. The total transaction price is allocated to the performance obligations identified in the contract in
proportion to their relative stand-alone selling prices. Given the bespoke nature of many of the Company’s products and services,
which are designed and/or manufactured under contract to the customer’s individual specifications, there are typically no observable
stand-alone selling prices. Instead, stand-alone selling prices are typically estimated based on expected costs plus contract margin
consistent with the Company’s pricing principles. The Company therefore has significant contract liabilities.

Revenue and profit recognition

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied as control of the goods and services is transferred to the customer.
For each performance obligation within a contract, the Company determines whether it is satisfied over time or at a point in time.
Performance obligations are satisfied over time if one of the following criteria is satisfied:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as it performs;

e the Company’'s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assetis created or enhanced,;
or

* the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and it has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

The Company has determined that most of its contracts satisfy the over time criteria, either because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as it performs (typically services or support contracts)
or the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and it has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date (typically development or production contracts).

For each performance obligation to be recognised over time, the Company recognises revenue using an input method, based on
costs incurred in the period. Revenue and attributable margin are calculated by reference to reliable estimates of transaction price
and total expected costs, after making suitable allowances for technical and other risks. Revenue and associated margin are
therefore recognised progressively as costs are incurred, and as risks have been mitigated or retired. The Company has determined
that this method faithfully depicts the Company's performance in transferring control of the goods and services to the customer.

If the over time criteria for revenue recognition are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time that control is transferred to
the customer, which is usually when legal title passes to the customer and the business has the right to payment, for example, on
delivery.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately as an
expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Software licences

The Company sells software licences either separately or together with other goods and services, including computer hardware and
implementation, hosting and support. Revenue recognition in respect of software licences sold as part of a bundle of goods and
services is considered separately when the licence is determined to be a separate performance obligation. Software licences either
represent a right to access the Company’s intellectual property as it exists throughout the licence period or a right to use the
Company’s intellectual property as it exists at the point in time at which the licence is granted. Revenue in respect of right to access
licences is recognised over the licence term or, in relation to perpetuatl licences, over the related customer relationship, and revenue
in respect of right to use licences is recognised up front on delivery to the customer. A software licence is considered to be a right
to access the Company’s intellectual property as it exists throughout the licence period if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

e the contract requires, or the customer reasonably expects, that the Company will undertake activities that significantly
affect the intellectual property;

« the licenee directly exposes the customer to the effects of those activities; and

* those activities do not result in the transfer of a good or service to the customer.

If one or more of the above criteria is not met then the licence revenue is recognised at the point in time control of the licence passes
to the customer

Contract modifications

The Company’s contracts are often amended for changes in customers’ requirements and specifications. A contract modification
exists when the parties to the contract approve a modification that either changes existing or creates new enforceable rights and
obligations. The effect of a contract modification on the transaction price and the Company’'s measure of progress towards the
satisfaction of the performance obligation to which it relates is recognised in one of the following ways:

. prospectively, as an additional, separate contract; or
. prospectively, as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract; or
. as part of the original contract using a cumulative catch-up.

Costs to obtain a contract

The Company expenses pre-contract bidding costs which are incurred regardless of whether a contract is awarded. The Company
does not typically incur costs to obtain contracts that it would not have incurred had the contracts not been awarded, such as sales
commission.

Costs to fulfil a contract
Contract fulfiiment costs in respect of over time contracts are expensed as incurred. Contract fulfiment costs in respect of point in
time contracts are accounted for under |AS 2 Inventories.

Leases

The Company as lessee

All leases in which the Company is lessee (except as noted below) are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
lease liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
repayment of the lease liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease term to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured as the present value of future lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. Where this rate is not determinable, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used, which is the interest rate the
Company would have to pay to borrow the amount necessary to obtain an asset of similar value, in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, comprising the initial value of the lease liability, any lease payments made (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) before the commencement of the lease, any initial direct costs and any restoration costs.

Payments in respect of short-term leases, low-value leases and leases of intangible assets are charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Comparative amounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 have not been restated on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases and are
presented in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, whereby lease payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. See note 23 for further details.

Research and development
The Company undertakes research and development activities either on its own behalf or on behalf of customers.

Company-funded expenditure on research, and on development activities not meeting the conditions for capitalisation, is written off
as incurred and charged to the Income Statement.

Where the research and development activity is performed on behalf of customers, the revenue arising is recognised in the Income
Statement in accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition policy.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Interest income and borrowing costs
Interest income and borrowing costs are recognised in the Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends
Dividends received and receivable are credited to the Company’s Income Statement. Equity dividends paid on ordinary share capital
are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those which are considered significant by virtue of their nature, size or incidence. These items are presented
as exceptional within their relevant income statement category to assist in the understanding of the trading and financial results of
the Company as these types of cost/credit do not form part of the underlying business. Within the year the company undertook a
reorganisation which resulted in redundancy costs to staff.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost or valuation, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Software
Software includes:

. Computer software licences acquired for use within the Company which are capitalised as an intangible asset on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software; and

. Software development costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, which
are recognised as intangible assets. Company-funded expenditure associated with enhancing or maintaining computer
software programs for sale is recognised as an expense as incurred.

Amortisation
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software development costs 2 to 5 years
Other intangible Up to 10 years

The Company has no indefinite-life intangible assets other than goodwill.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost .

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. The cost of
demonstration assets is written off as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided, normally on a straight-line basis, to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives to any estimated residual value, using the following rates:

Leasehold premises Over the period of the lease
Office furniture and equipment 20%
Computer, ancillary equipment and electronic test equipment 20-33%

No depreciation is provided on freehold land and assets in the course of construction.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each Balance Sheet
date.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.

Investments .
Fixed asset investments in shares in subsidiary undertakings and in shares in participating interests are stated at cost less provision
for impairment.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment .
The carrying amounts of the Company's investments, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment as required by IAS 36, Impairment of Assets. If any
such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that are not yet available for
use, impairment testing is performed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash flows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

An impairment loss in respect of investments, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment is reversed if the subsequent
increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised or if there
has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rates ruling at the Balance Sheet date. These exchange
differences are recognised in the Income Statement.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, including all relevant overhead expenditure, and net realisable value.

Trade, other and contract receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost including a provision for expected credit losses. The company measures
the provision at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, estimated by reference to past experience and relevant forward-
looking factors.

The Company writes off a trade receivable when there is objective evidence that the debtor is in significant financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when a debtor enters bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

Contract receivables represent amounts for which the Company has an unconditional right to consideration in respect of unbilled
revenue recognised at the Balance Sheet date and comprise costs incurred plus attributable margin.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, call and term deposits, and other short-term liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Loans and overdrafts

Loans and overdrafts are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and overdrafts are stated at either amortised cost or, where hedge accounting has been adopted, fair value in respect of the hedged
risk. Any difference between the amount initially recognised and the redemption value is recognised in the Income Statement over
the period of the borrowings.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences:

. on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

. related to investments in subsidiaries and equity accounted investments to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to corporate income taxes levied by the same tax authority and they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate
pre-tax discount rate.

Warranties and after-sales service

Warranties and after-sales service are provided in the normal course of business with provisions for associated costs being made
based on an assessment of future claims with reference to past experience. A provision for warranties is recognised when the
underlying products and services are sold. The provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities.

Reorganisations

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the
restructuring has either commenced or has been announced to those affected. The costs associated with the restructuring
programmes are supported by detailed plans and based on previous experience as well as other known factors. Future operating
costs are not provided for.

Legal, contractual and environmental

The Company holds provisions for expected legal, contractual and environmental costs that it expects to incur over an extended
period. Management exercises judgement to determine the amount of these provisions. Provision is made for known issues based
on past experience of similar items and other known factors. Each provision is considered separately and the amount provided
reflects the best estimate of the most likely amount, being the single most likely amount in a range of possible outcomes.

Other

Other provisions include provisions for onerous contracts, which are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

22



BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution pension schemes

A defined contribution pension scheme is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Obligations for contributions are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement as incurred.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The cost of providing benefits is determined periodically by independent actuaries and charged to the Income Statement in the
period in which those benefits are eamed by the employees. Remeasurements, including actuarial gains and losses, are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service costs resulting from a plan amendment
or curtailment are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

The retirement benefit surpluses and obligations recognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet represents the fair value of scheme
assets, less the present value of the defined benefit obligations calculated using a number of actuarial assumptions as set out on
page 35. The bid values of scheme assets are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant change
before they are realised. The present values of scheme liabilities are derived from cash flow projections over long periods and are,
therefore, inherently uncertain.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits, limits the measurement of a defined benefit surplus to the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit
scheme and the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme. IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on
a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction, issued in 2007, provides an interpretation of the
requirements of IAS 19, clarifying that a refund is available if the entity has an unconditional right to a refund in certain circumstances.
The Company has applied IFRIC 14 and has determined that there is no limit on the recognition of the surpluses in its defined
benefit pension schemes as at 31 December 2019.

The Company participates in a number of group and multi-employer schemes administered by its ultimate parent company, BAE
Systems plc. A share of the IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension deficit has been allocated to all participating employers. This
allocation is based on the relative payroll contributions of active members, which is consistent with prior years. Whilst this
methodology is intended to reflect a reasonable estimate of the share of the deficit, it may not accurately reflect the obligations of
the participating employers. Gains and losses resulting from changes to the relative payroll contributions of active members year
on year are included within actual retum on assets and actuarial gains and losses for the disclosures in respect of changes in the
fair value of scheme assets and changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations, respectively.

In the event that an employer who participates in BAE Systems plc's pension schemes fails or cannot be compelled to fulfil its
obligations as a participating employer, the remaining participating employers are obliged to collectively take on its obligations. The
Company considers the likelihood of this event arising as remote.

Share-based payments

BAE Systems plc, the Company’s ultimate parent company, issues equity-settied share options to employees of the Company. In
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the Company has recognised a charge for the equity-settied
share options issued to its employees.

Equity-settied share options and long-term incentive plan arrangements are measured at fair value at the date of grant using an
option pricing model.

The fair value is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of the number of
shares that will actually vest.

The Company recognises an increase in its investments in subsidiary undertakings in respect of the cost of share-based payment

awards issued by the Company's ultimate parent company, BAE Systems plc, to employees of the Company’s operating subsidiary
companies, with a corresponding entry to equity.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The international nature of the Company’s business means that it is exposed to volatility in currency exchange rates. In order to
- protect itself against currency fluctuations, the Company's policy is to hedge all material firm transactional exposures.

In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Company aims to achieve hedge accounting treatment for all derivatives that hedge material foreign currency exposures.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, such instruments are stated
at fair value at the Balance Sheet date. Fair values are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows.

Fair value through profit or loss
Gains and losses on derivative financial instruments that are not designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in the Income
Statement for the period.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows relating to a highly
probable forecast transaction (income or expense), or recognised asset or liability, the effective portion of any change in the fair
value of the instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Amounts
recognised in equity are reclassified from the hedging reserve into the cost of the underlying transaction and recognised in the
Income Statement when the underlying transaction affects profit or loss. The ineffective portion of any change in the fair value of
the instrument is recognised in the Income Statement immediately. The Company treats the foreign currency basis element of the
designated foreign exchange derivative hedging instrument as a cost of hedging and as such it is excluded from the hedge
designation.

2 Revenue

The Company’s revenue from customers by geographical location are: 2019 2018
£'000 £'000

United Kingdom 320,324 351,669
Europe 14,200 3,209
North America 2,138 1,212
Rest of the World 11,178 3,111
347,840 359,201

3 Operating costs

Included within operating costs are the following expenses: 2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Staff costs (note 4) (220,306) (201,018)
Intercompany market support expense / (operating income) ' (2,500) 3,788
Intercompany expense 2 (12,935) (15,227)
Depreciation and amortisation (10,570) (8,430)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense - (670)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,429) (67)
Operating lease rental costs (869) (6,140)
Research and development costs - (7)

' Relates to certain operating arrangements with fellow wholly owned subsidiaries.
2 Represents charges from fellow wholly owned subsidiaries in respect of product licences and research and development activities.

The remuneration of the auditor for the year ended 31 December 2019 for the audit of the financial statements of the Company was
£149k (2018: £149k) and £ni! (2018: £nil} in respect of non-audit work.
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2019 2018
£000 £'000
Reorganisation costs 15,513 -
impairment of intangible assets - 9,843
Exceptional items included within operating profit before tax 15,513 9,843
Taxation on exceptional items (2,637) (1,673)
Exceptional items after tax 12,876 8,170
5 Employees
The average number of Company employees was 2,778 (2018: 2,415).
2019 2018
Engineering 1,394 1,114
Consulting 512 475
Product & Project Management 322 306
Overhead 550 520
2,778 2,415
The aggregate staff costs of Company employees were as follows:
2019 2018
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 178,481 163,441
Social security costs 20,232 17,329
Pension costs — defined contribution plans (note 18) 18,049 17,070
Pension costs — defined benefit plans (note 18) 1,300 1,000
Share-based payments (note 21) 2,244 2,178
220,306 201,018

6 Directors emoluments

The disclosures below represent an allocation of the emoluments received by the directors to reflect their qualifying services to the
Company. Qualifying services are recognised in respect of the external revenue contracts recognised in the year as a percentage
based on the Directors emoluments (2019: 68% 2018: 73%). Payments to directors totalled £1,102k in the year and were paid fully

by the Company.

2019 2018

£000 £'000

Directors’ remuneration 1,069 1,110
Company contributions to defined benefit pension schemes 33 20
1,102 1,130

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits were accruing in respect of qualifying services under money purchase pension
schemes amounted to 2 (2018: 2) and under defined benefit schemes amounted to 2 (2018: 2).

The disclosure below represents an allocation of the emoluments received by the highest paid directors to reflect their qualifying
services to the Company. As per the directors emoluments as above, qualifying services are recognised in respect of the external

revenue contracts recognised in the year as a percentage based on the Directors emoluments (2019: 68% 2018: 73%).

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

Remuneration 513 386
Company contributions to defined benefit pension schemes 21 7
534 393

The highest paid director’s defined benefit accrued pension and accrued lump sum at 31 December 2019 was £nil (2018: £nil) and

£nil (2018: £nil), respectively.
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2019 2018
£'000 £000
Interest income 98 -
Financial income 98 -
Interest expense 72 5
Net interest expense on retirement benefit obligations (note 18) 600 300
Financial expense 672 305
8 Tax
Tax expense 2019 2018
£'000 £000
Current tax
Overseas:
Current tax 246 48
246 48
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (710) 1,492
Adjustments in respect of prior years 172 (82)
(538) 1,410
Tax result (292) 1,458
Reconciliation of tax resuit
The following reconciles the expected tax result, using the UK corporation tax rate, to the reported tax result:
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Loss before tax (75,979) (44,093)
UK corporation tax rate 19.00% 19.00%
Expected tax (income) (14,436) (8,378)
Expenses not tax effected 46 (124)
Research and development expenditure credits 462 (214)
Property, plant and equipment (183) (48)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 246 48
Provisions and accruals 94 (22)
Pensions (21) -
Share based payments (8) 88
Imputed interest (106) (738)
Losses surrendered to/(received from) group companies 13,442 10,928
Adjustments in respect of prior years 172 (82)
Tax result (292) 1,458
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8 Tax (continued)

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

2019 2018
Before Tax Netof Before Tax Net of
tax benefit/ tax tax benefit/ tax
(expense) (expense)
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Items that will not be reclassified to the
Income Statement:
Remeasurements on retirement benefit (14,900) 2,533 (12,367) 2,200 (374) 1,826
schemes
Items that may be reclassified to the
Income Statement:
Amounts credited to hedging reserve (1,885) 320 (1,565) (521) 89 (432)
(16,785) 2,853 (13,932) 1,679 (285) 1,394
2019 2018
Other Retained Total Other Retained Total
reserves earnings reserves earnings
A £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Deferred tax
Pensions - 2,533 2,533 - (374) (374)
Financial instruments 320 - 320 89 - 89
Tax on other comprehensive income 320 2,533 2,853 89 (374) (285)

9 Right of Use Asset
IFRS 16 Leases became effective on 1 January 2019. The impact of adoption is set out in note 23.

The Company leases land, buildings, vehicles and equipment under non-cancellable lease arrangements. The leases have varying
terms, including escalation clauses, renewal rights and purchase options. None of these terms represent unusual arrangements or
create material onerous or beneficial rights or obligations.

Right of use assets

2019

Land and Total

buildings
£'000 £'000
Additions during the year 16,927 16,927
Depreciation expense for the year (4,275) (4,275)
Impairment charge for the year (432) (432)
Net book value 12,220 12,220

Lease liabilities
A maturity analysis of the future undiscounted lease payments in respect of the Company’s lease liabilities is presented in the table
below.

2019
£'000

Payments due:
Within one year 4,552
Between one and five years 10,618
15,170

The total cash outfiow for leases in the year ended 31 December 2019, including short-term leases and low-value leases, amounted
to £6,467k.
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10 Intangible assets

Goodwill Software Assets in the Other Total
course of
construction
£'600 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 27,531 37,683 1,915 14,585 81,714
Additions - 1,857 - - 1,857
Transfers - 1,921 (1,921) - -
Transfers to Property, plant . _ 6 _ 6
and equipment
Disposals - (40,608) - - (40,608)
At 31 December 2019 27,531 853 - 14,585 42,969
Amortisation
At 1 January 2019 27,531 36,828 - 14,585 78,944
Amortisation charge - 1,098 - - 1,098
Disposals - (37,476) - - (37,476)
At 31 December 2019 27,531 450 - 14,585 42,566
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 - 403 - - 403
At 31 December 2018 - 855 1,915 - 2,770
11 Property, plant and equipment
Short Office Computers Electronic Assets in Total
leasehold furniture and test the course of
improvements and ancillary equipment construction
equipment equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2019 29,972 2,575 21,153 12,254 1,322 67,276
Additions 952 5 4 328 731 2,020
Disposals (6,918) (373) (13,663) (10,362) (55) (31,371)
Transfers 861 10 177 181 (1,229) N
Transfers to Intangible assets - - - - (6) (6)
At 31 December 2019 24,867 2,217 7,671 2,401 763 37,919
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2019 20,645 1,612 17,144 11,473 - 50,874
Depreciation charge for the year 2,788 234 1,893 282 - 5,197
Disposals (6,791) (361) (13,560) (10,362) - (31,074)
At 31 December 2019 16,642 1,485 5477 1,393 - 24,997
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 8,225 732 2,194 1,008 763 12,922
At 31 December 2018 9,327 963 4,009 781 1,322 16,402

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for in full in the accounts is £nil (2018: £nil).
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Operating lease commitments

The Company leases various land and buildings and other assets under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms including escalation clauses, renewal rights and purchase options. None of these terms represent unusual
arrangements or create material onerous or beneficial rights or obligations.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Payments due:
Not later than one year 1,000 6,223
Later than one year and not later than five years - 23,550
Later than five years - 7,140
1,000 36,913

Total of future minimum sublease income under non-cancellable subleases - -

Operating lease commitments above include £nil (2018: £nil) relating to commitments under onerous operating leases which have
been fully provided for within provisions.

12 Investments

Carrying value £'000
At 1 January 2019 333
Additions -
At 31 December 2019 333

Subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2019

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, the subsidiary as at 31 December 2019 is disclosed below. The
subsidiary undertaking is owned directly the Company and has a financial year end of 31 December.

Company name Class of shares Proportion of class (%)

BAE Systems Applied Intelligence Malaysia Sdn Bhd Ordinary shares of RM1 99.9999

Level 25, Menara Hong Leong, No 6 Jalan Damanlela, Bukit
Damansara 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

13 Other financial assets/liabilities

2019 2018
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current
Cash flow hedges — foreign exchange 1,361 i 2918 )
contracts
Current
Cash flow hedges — foreign exchange 1,604 } 815 @)
contracts .
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Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Deferred tax assets
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Deferred tax liabilities

Net balance at 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 4,241 4,156 - - 4,241 4,156

Provisions and accruals 1,207 814 - - 1,207 814

Pension/retirement schemes: Deficits 4,471 2,006 - - 4,471 2,006

Share-based payments 716 459 - - 716 459

Financial instruments - - (315) (634) (315) (634)

Other temporary differences 5,211 5,211 - - 5,211 5211

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 15,846 12,646 (315) (634) 15,531 12,012

Set off of tax (315) (634) 315 634 - -

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 15,531 12,012 - - 15,531 12,012
Movement in temporary differences

At At

1 January Recognised Recognised 31 December

2019 In income In equity 2019

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 4,156 85 - 4,241

Provisions and accruals 814 393 - 1,207

Pensions/retirement schemes: deficits 2,006 (68) 2,533 4,471

Share-based payments 459 129 128 716

Financial instruments (634) - 319 (315)

Other temporary differences 5,211 - - 5,211

12,012 539 2,980 15,531

At At

1 January Recognised Recognised 31 December

2018 In income In equity 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 4,569 (413) - 4,156

Provisions and accruals 915 (101) - 814

Pensions/retirement schemes: deficits 2,380 - (374) 2,006

Share-based payments 246 17) 230 459

Financial instruments (723) - 89 (634)

Other temporary differences 6,090 (879) - 5,211

13,477 (1,410) (55) 12,012

The deferred tax asset has been prepared applying a closing tax rate of 17% on the basis that any deferred assets or liabilities
released or settled are likely to reverse after April 2020. However, in the Spring Budget 2020, the Government announced that from
1 April 2020 the corporation tax rate would remain at 19% (rather than reducing to 17%, as previously enacted). This new law was
substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. As the proposal to keep the rate at 19% had not been substantively enacted at the Balance

Sheet date, its effects are not included in these financial statements and the rate of 17% is used.

If the proposal had been

substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date the deferred tax assets would have increased to £17,359k due to the change in

the tax rate.
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2019 2018
£000 £'000
Short-term work in progress 395 234
Raw materials 4,920 3,417
5,315 3,651
The Company recognised £nil (2018: £1,032k) as a write down of inventories to net realisable value.
16 Trade, other and contract receivables
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due from customers for contract work 21,569 30,094
Trade receivables 34,757 35,963
Amounts owed by group companies 164,627 37,197
Prepayments 8,722 6,201
Other receivables 91 75
229,766 109,530
17 Trade and other payables
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade payables 4,095 4,977
Amounts due to customers for contract work 29,475 36,124
Amounts owed to group companies 65,523 240,754
Other taxes and social security costs 12,744 13,724
Accruals 30,498 46,387
Other payables 1,259 288
143,594 342,254
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18 Retirement benefits

Background

BAE Systems plc operates pension schemes for qualifying employees in the UK, US and other countries. The principal schemes in
the UK are funded defined benefit schemes and the assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds. During 2019, several
legacy BAE Systems pension arrangements were merged into the BAE Systems Pension Scheme (Main Scheme). Contributions
and members’ benefits are unchanged. The allocation of each Company's share of the pension deficit is based on the relative
payroll contributions of active members, as outlined on page 23. This is now being calculated on the basis of contributions into the
newly merged Main Scheme rather than for each legacy scheme separately. As each of the legacy schemes had different funding
levels compared to the merged Main Scheme, there are resulting gains and losses. These gains and losses are recorded within
other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income and are included within actual return on assets and actuarial
gains and losses for the disclosures in respect of changes in the fair value of scheme assets and changes in the present value of
defined benefit obligations, respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the weighted average duration of the UK defined benefit pension obligations was 17 years (2018 17 years).

The Company participates in the following BAE Systems plc schemes: BAE Systems Pension Scheme (Main Scheme), BAE
Systems Executive Pension Scheme.

The split of the defined benefit pension liability on a funding basis between active, deferred and pensioner members for the most
significant schemes (based on the size of the closing net deficit/surplus) is set out below:

Active Deferred  Pensioner
o % %
Main Scheme (merged)* 31 21 48

1. Source: 31 October 2019 actuarial valuation reports for the legacy schemes within the recently-merged Main Scheme.

Regulatory framework .

The funded UK schemes are registered and subject to the statutory scheme-specific funding requirements outlined in UK legislation,
including the payment of levies to the Pension Protection Fund as set out in the Pension Act 2004. These schemes were established
under trust and the responsibility for their governance lies jointly with the trustees and BAE Systems plc.

Benefits

The UK defined benefit schemes provide benefits to members in the form of a set level of pension payable for life based on members’
final salaries. The benefits attract inflation-related increases both in deferment and payment. All UK defined benefit schemes are
closed to new entrants, with benefits for new employees being provided through a defined contribution scheme. The Normal
Retirement Age for active members of the Main Scheme is 65. Specific benefits applicable to members differ between schemes.
Further details on the benefits provided by each scheme are provided on the BAE Systems Pensions website:
www.baesystemspensions.com.

A UK High Court judgment was delivered on 26 October 2018 concerning gender equalisation for the effect of Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions (GMPs) for occupational pension schemes. In 2018, a non-recurring past service cost was included in the income
statement to reflect the expectation that the impact of GMP equalisation would increase the pension deficit in the balance sheet. In
2019, an allowance was included within the pension deficit which is a consistent proportion of the UK liabilities as applied in 2018
and reflects the updated UK IAS 19 valuations as at 31 December 2019.

Funding

Introduction
Disclosures in respect of pension funding provided below reflect the pension schemes as a whole. Disclosures in respect of pension
accounting under IAS 19 are provided on pages 35 to 39.

The majority of the UK defined benefit pension schemes are funded by BAE Systems pic's subsidiaries and equity accounted
investments. The individual pension schemes' funding requirements are based on actuarial measurement frameworks set out in
their funding policies.

For funding valuation purposes, pension scheme assets are included at market value at the valuation date, whilst the liabilities are
measured on an actuarial funding basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted to their present value based on
prudent assumptions set by the trustees following consultation with scheme actuaries.

The funding valuations are performed by professionally qualified independent actuaries and include assumptions which differ from

the actuarial assumptions used for IAS 19 accounting purposes shown on page 33. The purpose of the funding valuations is to
design funding plans which ensure that the schemes have sufficient funds available to meet future benefit payments.
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18 Retirement benefits (continued)

Valuations

Funding valuations of the UK defined benefit schemes are performed every three years. Following the merger of several of the UK
pension schemes in October 2019, BAE Systems plc and the trustees agreed to carry out an early triennial funding valuation for the
Main Scheme as at 31 October 2019. The next funding valuations for the other UK schemes will have an effective date of no later
than 31 March 2020.

The results of the most recent triennial valuations are shown below. These valuations and, where necessary, deficit recovery plans
were agreed with the trustees and certified by the scheme actuaries after consultation with The Pensions Regulator in the UK.

Main Other

Scheme as at schemes as at

31 October 2019 31 March 2017

£'bn £bn

Market value of assets 20.6 22

Present value of liabilities (22.5) (2)

Funding (deficit)y/surplus (1.9) 0.2

Percentage of accrued benefits covered by the assets at the valuation date 92% 110%
The valuations in 2017 and 2019 were determined using the following mortality assumptions:

Life expectancy of a male currently aged 65 (years) 86 — 89

Life expectancy of a female currently aged 65 (years) 87 -90

Life expectancy of a male currently aged 45 (years) 88-92

Life expectancy of a female currently aged 45 (years) 90-93

The discount rate assumptions used in the 2017 and 2019 valuations were directly based on prudent levels of expected retums for
the assets held by the schemes, reflecting the planned investment strategies and maturity profiles of each scheme. The discount
rates are curves which provide a different rate for each year into the future.

The inflation assumptions are derived using data from the Bank of England which is based on the difference between the yields on
index-linked and fixed interest long-term government bonds. The inflation assumption is a curve which provides a different rate for
each year into the future.

The funding valuations resulted in a significantly lower deficit than under IAS 19, largely due to lower liabilities reflecting the higher
discount rate assumption. Under IAS 19, the discount rate for accounting purposes is based on third-party AA corporate bond yields
whereas, for funding valuation purposes, the discount rate is based on a prudent level of expected returns from the broader and
mixed types of investments reflected in the schemes’ investment strategies, which are expected overall to yield higher returns than
bonds.

The 2019 funding agreement is underpinned by a contingency plan, which includes a commitment by BAE Systems plc to a further
£50m of deficit funding in each of 2021 and 2022 into the Main Scheme prior to the next triennial valuation in the event that the
scheme funding level were to fall below pre-determined parameters. In addition, BAE Systems plc would be required to pay £187m
in respect of the Main Scheme if the funding level were to fall significantly and were to remain at or below those levels for nine
months.

There have been no changes to the contributions or benefits, as set out in the rules of the schemes, for pension scheme members
as a result of the new funding valuations.

The results of future triennial valuations and associated funding requirements will be impacted by a number of factors, including the
future performance of investment markets and anticipated members’ longevity.

Contributions
Under the terms of the trust deeds of the UK schemes, BAE Systems plc is required to have a funding plan determined at the
conclusion of the triennial funding valuations.

The total Company contributions made to the defined benefit schemes in the year ended 31 December 2019 were £2,300k (2018
£1,300k).

Deficit contributions will further increase in line with any percentage growth in dividend payments made by BAE Systems plc. As
part of the 31 October 2019 valuation agreement, BAE Systems plc have paid £1bn into the Main Scheme in 2020 representing an
advancement of £1bn in deficit contributions that were due, under the 2017 valuation deficit recovery plan, between 2022 and 2026.
The annual payments are expected to end in 2021 and the deficit is expected to be cleared in 2026.
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18 Retirement benefits (continued)

Risk management
The defined benefit pension schemes expose the Company to actuarial risks, including market (investment) risk, interest rate risk,
inflation risk and longevity risk.

Risk Mitigation

Market (investment) risk

Asset returns may not move in line The investment portfolios are highly diversified, investing in a wide range of assets, in
with the liabilities and may be subject order to reduce the exposure of the total portfolio to a materially adverse impact from a
to volatility. single security or type of security. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a

matching portfolio, which largely consists of index-linked bonds, gilts and swaps,
designed to mirror movements in corresponding liabilities.

Some 49% (2018 47%) of the UK pension scheme assets are held in equities and
pooled investment vehicles due to the higher expected level of return over the long
term.

Some of the pension schemes use derivative financial instruments as part of their
investment strategy to manage the level of market risk. The Main Scheme has an equity
option strategy protecting £2.9bn of assets against a significant fall in equity markets.

Interest rate risk

Liabilities are sensitive to movements In addition to investing in bonds as part of the matching portfolio, the UK schemes

in interest rates, with lower interest invest in interest rate swaps to reduce the exposure to movements in interest rales. The
rates leading to an increase in the swaps are held with several banks to reduce counterparty risk.

aluation of liabilities.
valuat : The discount rate assumptions set as part of the UK funding valuations directly reflect

the expected returns on assets held by the schemes and provide a natural hedge
against interest rate risk. The planned investment strategy, which is reflected in the
discount rate and liability calculation, is for the schemes to increase their investments in
bonds or other assets which match the liabilities as the schemes mature. Under the UK
funding valuations, the Company expects the schemes to be fully hedged against
interest rate movements following a five-year transition period to the planned investment

strategy.
Inflation risk
Liabilities are sensitive to movements  In addition to investing in index-linked bonds as part of the matching portfolio, the principal
in inflation, with higher inflation UK schemes invest in long-term inflation swaps to reduce the exposure to movements in

leading to an increase in the valuation inflation. The swaps are held with several banks to reduce counterparty risk.

of liabilities.
The UK funding valuations provide a natural hedge against inflation movements within the

discount rate. The Company is already fully hedged against inflation movements and,
under the planned investment strategy, aims to maintain a fully hedged position.

In 2014, the Main Scheme implemented a pension increase exchange to allow retired
members to elect for a higher current pension in exchange for foregoing certain rights to
future pension increases.

Longevity risk
Liabilities are sensitive to life Longevity adjustment factors are used in the majority of the UK pension schemes in
expectancy, with increases in life order to adjust the pension benefits payable so as to share the cost of people living

expectancies leading to an increase longer with employees.

in the valuation of liabilities.
. In 2013, with the agreement of BAE Systems plc, the trustees of the 2000 Plan, Royal

Ordnance Pension Scheme and Shipbuilding Industries Pension Scheme (SIPS) entered
into arrangements with Legal & General to insure against longevity risk for the current
pensioner population, covering a total of £4.4bn of pension scheme liabilities. These
arrangements reduce the funding volatility relating to increasing life expectancy. This
longevity risk cover with Legal & General remains in place following the merger of the
2000 Plan and SIPS into the Main Scheme.
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18 Retirement benefits (continued)

IAS 19 Accounting
The disclosures below relate to pension schemes in the UK which are accounted for as defined benefit schemes in accordance with
1AS 19.

Principal actuarial assumptions
The assumptions used are estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the long-term nature of
the obligation covered, may not necessarily occur in practice.

2019 2018 2017
Financial assumptions
Discount rate — past service (%) 21 29 26
Discount rate - future service (%) 2.2 3.0 2.7
Retail Prices Index (RPI) infiation (%) 2.8 3.1 3.1
Rate of increase in salaries (%) 2.8 3.1 3.1
Rate of increase in deferred pensions (%) 2.0/2.8 2.1/31 2.1/31
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (%) 15-3.6 16-3.7 16-3.7
Demographic assumptions
Life expectancy of a male currently aged 65 (years) 87 - 88 86 - 88 86 — 88
Life expectancy of a female currently aged 65 (years) 88 -90 88 - 90 88-90
Life expectancy of a male currently aged 45 (years) 88 -89 88 -90 88 -90
Life expectancy of a female currently aged 45 (years) 89 - 91 90 -91 90 - 92
Discount rate

The discount rate assumptions are derived through discounting the projected benefit payments of the principal schemes using a
third-party AA corporate bond yield curve to produce a singie equivalent discount rate. This inherently captures the maturity profile
of the expected benefit payments. The discount rate used for future service differs from that used for past service as it only uses
the cash flows relating to active members, which have a different duration. Further information on the duration of the schemes is
detailed on page 32.

Retail Prices Index (RPI) inflation

The inflation assumptions are derived by reference to the difference between the yields on index-linked and fixed-interest long-term
government bonds, or advice from the local actuary depending on the available information. As a consequence of RPI reform
announcements during 2019, the Company has reviewed its approach to setting inflation assumptions and has decided to
set the Consumer Prices Index (CPIl) assumption at 0.8% lower than RPI. The resulting CPl assumption is 2.0%.

Rate of increase in salaries
The rate of increase in salaries is assumed to be RPI inflation of 2.8% (2018 3.1%), plus a promotional scale.

Rate of increase in deferred pensions

The rate of increase in deferred pensions is based on Consumer Prices Index (CP1) inflation of 2.0% (2018 2.1%), with the exception
of the legacy 2000 Plan, which is based on RP! inflation of 2.8% (2018 3.1%). The rate of increase in deferred pensions is subject
to inflation caps.

Rate of increase in pensions in payment

The rate of increase in pensions in payment differs between UK schemes. Different tranches of the schemes increase at rates based
on either RPI or CPI inflation, and some are subject to an inflation cap. With the exception of two smaller schemes, the rate of
increase in pensions in payment is based on RP! inflation.

Life expectancy

The Company has used the Self-Administered Pension Schemes S2 mortality tables based on year of birth (as published by the
Institute of Actuaries) for both pensioner and non-pensioner members in conjunction with the results of an investigation into the
actual mortality experience of scheme members and information on the demographic profile of the scheme's membership. In
addition, to allow for future improvements in longevity, the Continuous Mortality Investigation 2018 tables (published by the Institute
of Actuaries) have been used (in 2018, the Continuous Mortality Investigation 2017 tables were used), with an assumed long-term
rate of future annual mortality improvements of 1.0% (2018 1.25%), an initial rate adjustment parameter (‘A’) of 0.25% in
conjunction with a smoothing parameter (‘Sx’) of 7 for all members.
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18 Retirement benefits (continued)

The disclosures below are in respect of the Company’s share of the IAS 19 deficit using the allocation methodology outlined on
page 23.

Summary of movements in retirement benefit obligations

£'000
Company's share of IAS 19 deficit at 1 January 2019 (11,800)
Actual return on assets excluding amounts included in interest expense 69,600
Decrease in liabilities due to changes in assumptions and experience (84,500)
Contributions in excess of service cost 1,000
Net interest expense (600)
Company’s share of IAS 19 deficit at 31 December 2019 (26,300)
Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Present value of unfunded obligations (1,000) (1,200)
Present value of funded obligations (161,600) (77,500)
Fair value of scheme assets 136,300 66,300
Company’s share of IAS 19 deficit, net (26,300) (11,800)
Represented by:
Retirement benefit surpluses 800 700
Retirement benefit obligations (27,100) (12,500)
(26,300) (11,800)
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£000
Company'’s share of the value of scheme assets at 1 January 2018 78,800
Interest income 1,800
Actual return on assets excluding amounts included in interest income (12,000)
Actual return on assets (10,200)
Contributions by employer 1,300
Contributions by employer in respect of employee salary sacrifice arrangemehts 300
Total contributions by employer 1,600
Benefits paid (3,300)
Company's share of the value of scheme assets at 31 December 2018 66,900
Interest income 3,600
Actual return on assets excluding amounts included in interest income 69,600
Actual return on assets 73,200
Contributions by employer 2,300
Contributions by employer in respect of employee salary sacrifice arrangements 500
Total contributions by employer 2,800
Administrative expenses (100)
Benefits paid (6,500)
Company’s share of the value of scheme assets at 31 December 2019 136,300
Assets of defined benefit pension schemes
2019 2018
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted  Unquoted Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Equities:
UK 14,000 - 14,000 10,500 - 10,500
Overseas 12,200 - 12,200 6,500 - 6,500
Pooled investment vehicles® 12,200 32,400 44,600 9,000 13,500 14,400
Fixed interest securities:
UK gilts 4,700 - 4,700 3,000 - 3,000
UK corporates 6,500 14,300 21,400 3,800 7,400 11,200
Overseas government 300 - 300 200 - 200
Overseas corporates 8,600 100 8,700 4,200 200 4,400
Index-linked securities:
UK gilts 9,400 1,900 11,300 5,400 - 5,400
UK corporates 1,800 6,300 8,100 2,000 2,400 4,400
Property? 11,300 11,300 - 6,600 6,600
Derivatives® (5,100) (5,100) - (1,300) (1,300)
Cash:
Sterting 3,900 - 3,900 900 - 900
Foreign currency 200 - 200 - - -
Other 100 600 700 2,000 500 2,500
Company total 73,900 62,400 136,300 37,600 29,300 66,900

1. Primarily invested in private markets and exchange traded funds. The amounts classified as unquoted primarily comprise investments in private
markets, with the majority held in infrastructure, altematives and direct funds, valued in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture

Capital Valuation Guidelines.

2. Valued on the basis of open market value at the end of the year determined in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors'

Appraisal and Valuation Standards and the Practice Note contained therein.

3. Includes equity protection options, forward foreign exchange contracts, futures, and interest rate, inflation and longevity swaps. The valuations are

based on valuation techniques using underlying market data and discounted cash flows.
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18 Retirement benefits (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

£'000
Company’s share of the defined benefit obligations at 1 January 2018 (92,800)
Current service cost (700),
Contributions by employer in respect of employee salary sacrifice arrangements (300),
Total current service cost (1,000)
Members’ contributions (300)
Actuarial loss due to changes in assumptions and experience 14,200
Interest expense (2,100)
Benefits paid 3,300
Company’s share of the defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2018 (78,700)
Current service cost (1,200
Contributions by employer in respect of employee salary sacrifice arrangements (500
Total current service cost (1,700)
Actuarial gain due to changes in assumptions and experience (84,500)
Interest expense (4,200)
Benefits paid 6,500
Company’s share of the defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2019 (162,600)
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement
2019 2018
£000 £'000
Included in operating costs:
Current service cost (1,200) (700)
Guaranteed Minimum Pension equalisation charge - (300)
Administrative expenses (100) -
(1,300) (1,000)
Included in finance costs:
Net interest expense on retirement benefit obligations (600) (300)

The Company incurred a charge of £18,049k (2018: £17,070 k) in relation to defined contribution schemes for employees.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity information has been derived using scenario analysis from the actuarial assumptions as at 31 December 2019 and

keeping all other assumptions as set out on page 35.

Financial assumptions

The estimated impact of changes in the discount rate and inflation assumptions on the defined benefit pension obligation, together
with the estimated impact on scheme assets after allocation to other participating employers, is shown in the table below. The
estimated impact on scheme assets takes into account the risk management activities in respect of interest rate and inflation risk.
The sensitivity analysis on the defined benefit obligation is measured on an IAS 19 accounting basis and, therefore, does not reflect

the natural hedging in the discount rate used for funding valuation purposes.

(Increase)/ Increase/
decrease in (decrease) in
pension scheme
obligation assets
£m £m
Discount rate:
0.1 percentage point increase 3 (1)
0.1 percentage point decrease (3) 1
Inflation:
0.1 percentage point increase (2) 1
0.1 percentage point decrease 2 1)
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Demographic assumptions
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Changes in the life expectancy assumption, including the benefit of longevity swap arrangements, would have the following effect on

the net IAS 19 deficit:

(Increase)/
decrease in net

deficit
£m
Life expectancy:
One-year increase (7)
One-year decrease 7
19 Provisions
Warranty Reorganisation Total
£000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2019 110 182 292
Created 143 24,308 24,451
Released (107) (8,795) (8,902)
Utilised - (8,248) (8,248)
At 31 December 2019 146 7,447 7,593
Represented by:
Non-current - - -
Current 146 7,447 7,593
146 7,447 7,593
Reorganisation
Reorganisation provisions made during 2019 have been utilised during 2020.
Other
There are no single significant provisions included within other provisions.
20 Share capital and other reserves
Share capital
£1
Ordinary Nominal
shares value
£'000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2018 125,045 125
Issued in year 1 -
At 31 December 2019 125,046 125

On 6th December 2019, the Company issued £1 share to Detica Group Limited, a related company, for £380m.

Equity dividends

No dividends were paid in respect of the years ended 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.

The directors do not propose a final dividend for 2019.
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Other reserves

Share based

Capital payments Hedging

redemption reserve reserve Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At 1 January 2018 31 15,560 3,529 19,120
Other comprehensive income - - (432) (432)
Share-based payments - 2,408 - 2,408
At 31 December 2018 31 17,968 3,097 21,096
Other comprehensive income - - (1,565) (1,565)
Share-based payments - 2,372 - 2,372

At 31 December 2019 31 20,340 1,532 21,903

Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the credit to reserves in relation to the share-based payments expense recognised
in the Company’s Income Statement (note 4).

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

21 Share-based payments

Options over shares of the ultimate parent undertaking, BAE Systems plc, have been granted to employees of the Company under
various schemes. Details of the terms and conditions of each share-based payment plan are given in the Annual Remuneration
Report of the BAE Systems Annual Report 2019.

For options outstanding at the end of the year:

2019 2018
Range of Weighted Range of Weighted
exercise price of average exercise price of average
outstanding remaining outstanding remaining
options contracted life options contracted life
(£) (years) (£) (years)
Executive Share Option Plan 3.01-6.49 8 3.01-6.49 8
Performance Share Plan . - 5 - 5

The average share price in the year was £5.21 (2018 £5.89)
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22 Events after the reporting period

The outbreak of the COVID-19 coronavirus was confirmed to be a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11 March
2020 and only after that date did major governments, such as the UK, start taking significant mitigating steps. As such the Company
considers this to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. The full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on medium- and long-
term economic activity is not yet known, although is likely to be significant. The Company continues to monitor the impact on its
business, however while the uncertainty continues, the Company is not able to quantify the possible financial effect of the pandemic.
Some asset and liability carrying values may be impacted, particularly where they are reliant on management’s use of estimates
and judgements when applying accounting policies. Potential areas of the Company’s financial statements which could be materially
impacted may include, but are not limited to:

. Recognition of revenue and associated margin recognised as costs are incurred and as risks are mitigated or retired;

¢  The valuation of post-retirement benefit obligations and related deferred tax balances, if estimates relating to actuarial
assumptions (including discount and inflation rate assumptions) are no longer valid or change significantly, or if scheme
asset values are affected by the impact of the pandemic;

*  The camrying value of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property and investments in other
group companies;

. Potential credit losses on receivables; the valuation of other financial assets and liabilities; and

«  Amendments to existing provisions, or new provisions, being required as a consequence of the pandemic.

23 Change in accounting policies

IFRS 16 Leases became effective on 1 January 2019 and replaced IAS 17 Leases, and related interpretations. It results in almost
all leases being recognised on the balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, a right-of-use asset and a financial liability for future lease payments have been recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term leases, low-value leases and leases of intangible assets.

The Company has applied the modified retrospective transition approach and has not restated comparative amounts for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Company has elected to measure right-of-use assets at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any lease prepayments or accrued lease expenses, onerous lease provisions, and leased assets which have
subsequently been subleased).

The Company has elected to adopt the following practical expedients on transition:

— not to capitalise a right-of-use lease asset or related lease liability where the lease expires before 31 December 2019;

— not to reassess contracts to determine if the contract contains a lease and not to separate lease and non-lease elements;

— where an onerous lease provision is in existence, to utilise this provision to reduce the right-of-use asset value rather than
undertaking an impairment review;

— to use hindsight in determining the lease term;

- to exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset; and

- to apply the portfolio approach where a group of leases has similar characteristics.

Accounting policy

The accounting policy in respect of leases applied from 1 January 2019 is set out in note 1. Comparative amounts for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have not been restated and are presented in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, whereby lease payments
made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Reconciliation between operating lease commitments and lease liability
The following table explains the difference between the operating lease commitments disclosed applying IAS 17 at 31 December
2018 and the lease liability recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019.

£'000
Total minimum lease payments reported at 31 December 2018 under IAS 17 36,914
Change in assessment of lease term under IFRS 16 (382)
Impact of discounting lease liability under IFRS 16 (2,634)
Lease liability recognised on transition to IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 33,898

Since the inception of the lease liability following the initial application of IFRS 16: Leases, due to the likelihood of exercising a
contractual break clause in a lease on a property held by the Company a decrease in the future lease liability has been recorded
as at 31 December 2019.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities was 6.62%.
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24 Controlling parties

The Company’s immediate parent company is Detica Group Limited and the ultimate controlling party is BAE Systems plc, which is
both the smallest and largest only parent company preparing group financial statements. Both companies are incorporated in United
Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

The consolidated financial statements of BAE Systems plc are available to the public and may be obtained from its registered
address:

6 Carlton Gardens
London
SW1Y 5AD

Website: www.baesystems.com
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